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Request for Proposal for Library Materials Self-Checkout Solution, Installation and Support 

Services 

 Questions and Answers 

June 4, 2018 

 

Q1. Section 4.1 of Technical Requirements: Do you intend to install a VTLS staff client on each 

self-checkout station? If not, how do you intend for the software to clear a blocked card? 

A1. The Library does not wish to install the VTLS staff client on each self-checkout station. The 

account will be blocked within the self-check software only and not the ILS. We current have a 

function with the self-checkout where, if a patron tries to login with the wrong pin 5 times, the 

software blocks the account and the patron will have to ask the staff to unlock the account.  

Q2. Section 4.6 of Technical Requirements: What is PPS? 

A2. Personal Payment System.  

Q3. Are you going to continue to use your current cash and credit card payment systems? 

A3. The Successful Proposer is to replace the existing hardware. The Library may decide to stay 

or change the merchant and gateway system. 

Q4. Are there any requirements for providing RFID security gates? 

A4. This RFP is for the self-checkout system only. The RFID gates are not part of the RFP. 

Q5. When will you be scheduling your interviews and product demonstrations? 

A5. As per RFP section, C. Administrative Specifications, 1. , which states. “All proposals must 

be irrevocable for 180 days and signed by an authorized officer of the firm.” 

The Library anticipates interviews and product demonstrations occurring within the 180 day 

period. 

Furthermore, dates for interviews and product demonstrations depend on the number of proposals 

received, the detail and length of each proposal and the speed in which the selection committee 

can complete the initial review. As stated in B. Selection Process, page 21 of the solicitation, “the 

Selection Committee will conduct interviews and product demonstrations of proposers at the sole 

discretion of the Library found to be most qualified to perform the services required. Proposers 

selected for interviews and products demonstrations, Section VII (A 6), as referenced above, will 

be notified in writing advance of the interview date. Proposes not selected for an interview and a 

product demonstration will be notified that they have not been selected and that its proposal is no 

longer under consideration by the Library.” 

Q6. When will you be scheduling the proposer pilots? 

A6. As per RFP section, C. Administrative Specifications, 1. , which states. “All proposals must 

be irrevocable for 180 days and signed by an authorized officer of the firm.” 



2 
 

The Library anticipates interviews and product demonstrations occurring within the 180 day 

period. 

The Library anticipates proposer pilots occurring within the 180 day period. 

Furthermore, dates for pilots depend on the speed in which the interviews and product 

demonstration take. As stated in B. Selection Process, page 21 of the solicitation, “the Selection 

Committee will invite product pilots of proposers at the sole discretion of the Library found to be 

most qualified to perform the services required. Proposers selected for self-checkout  pilots, 

Section VII (A 7), as referenced above, will be notified in writing advance of selection for the self-

checkout  pilot. Proposes not selected for a self-checkout pilot will be notified that they have not 

been selected and that its proposal is no longer under consideration by the Library. The Library 

reserve the right to conclude a proposer’s self-checkout pilot at its sole discretion.”  

Q7. Do you have a schedule for the project? Including the installation start date and the project 

completion? 

A7. As per RFP section, C. Administrative Specifications, 1. , which states. “All proposals must 

be irrevocable for 180 days and signed by an authorized officer of the firm.” 

The Library intends to award a contract within this timeframe and for the Successful Prosper to 

commence work soon after. 

Q8. Can you furnish Circulation stats by branch? 

A8. Yes. Self-checkout transaction stats by location information is listed in Table A. which can be 

found at the end of this document. 

Q9. Do you circulate materials from the other NY Public Libraries? If yes, are they on the same 

ILS? 

A9. No 

Q10. Can you confirm that the RFID patron cards are in accordance to ISO15693? 

A10. Yes 

Q11. What RFID data model(s) are encoded in the RFID tags? Please be specific and list all data 

models being used. 

A11. The Library adds a barcode to each item when it is linked to the ILS. The Library uses the 

self-checkout system to write the item to the RFID tag. The Library started using the RFID 15 

years ago and due to some technical limitations at the time, the present self-checkout software uses 

simple translation table to save the first 5 digits of the barcode as 3 digits. For example: each item 

barcode starts with "00514”, the software saves the barcode as “605”. The Successful Proposer’s 

software must be able to the read translate table and convert from RFID to ILS and vice versa.   
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Q12. What is the current manufacturer and model number of your cashless payment solution(s)? 

A12. That information is not relevant because the Library seeks to replace the current hardware 

including the payment system.  

Q13. Who is the current processor for the cashless payment solution(s)? 

A13. The credit card swipe portion is manufactured by Magtek and cash component is 

manufactured by Coinco.  

Q14. Shall the coin changer be equipped with 3, 4 or 6 tubes (in regards of capacity)? 

A14. Proposers should indicate in its proposal the number of tubes it proposes in its solution and 

why it recommends this specific solution. 

Q15. The library wants to accept bills for the payment solution. Do you expect change to be in 

coins only or also in bills? 

A15. Both. 

 

Table A. Self-Checkout Transactions by Location 

Location Check in Check out & Renewal 

Totals 1,411,658 7,200,584 

Arverne 16,410 89,864 

Astoria 9,836 43,412 

Auburndale 14,570 104,005 

Baisley Park 297 34,884 

Bay Terrace 7,302 67,376 

Bayside 61,551 176,402 

Bellerose 11,233 86,562 

Bookmobile 19,408 11,119 

Briarwood 35,811 91,669 

Broad Channel 28,891 16,394 

Broadway 2,868 151,649 

Cambria Heights 1,030 46,092 

Central Library (Jamaica) 31,588 224,380 
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Central Media Center 69,203 196,603 

Childrens Library Discovery Center 1,524 188,948 

Corona 2,613 147,055 

Court Square 1,235 53,668 

Douglaston 8,935 78,587 

East Elmhurst 761 21,891 

East Flushing 6,232 72,587 

Elmhurst 76,371 458,625 

Far Rockaway 14,661 63,325 

Flushing 46,512 606,902 

Flushing ALC 859 0 

Flushing Intl Resource Ctr 10,570 0 

Flushing Media Center 4,438 151,017 

Forest Hills 44,467 220,704 

Fresh Meadows 47,025 331,116 

Glen Oaks 49,464 169,663 

Glendale 14,832 53,615 

Hillcrest 17,690 117,125 

Hollis 1,085 48,314 

Howard Beach 966 77,046 

Information Technology & Systems 6 13 

Jackson Heights 32,039 287,889 

Kew Gardens Hills 101,958 142,869 

Langston Hughes 3,738 54,856 

Laurelton 4,822 48,378 

Lefferts 14,237 118,749 

Lefrak City 2,112 65,526 

Long Island City 2,728 59,283 
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Maspeth 47,704 114,126 

McGoldrick 15,676 26,615 

Middle Village 15,322 44,854 

Mitchell-Linden 20,278 163,845 

North Forest Park 93,572 84,778 

North Hills 31,103 68,799 

Ozone Park 7,433 50,273 

Peninsula 32,846 96,376 

Pomonok 3,957 67,536 

Poppenhusen 1,203 53,936 

Queens Village 1,079 59,261 

Queensboro Hill 10,639 38,288 

Rego Park 28,339 143,850 

Richmond Hill 130,017 103,796 

Ridgewood 17,220 113,149 

Rochdale Village 3,798 50,547 

Rosedale 15,554 44,306 

Seaside 304 50,835 

South Hollis 502 32,603 

South Jamaica 1,143 26,453 

South Ozone Park 728 46,565 

St.Albans 7,059 36,063 

Steinway 23,394 144,843 

Sunnyside 17,082 147,468 

Whitestone 2,381 88,591 

Windsor Park 26,304 116,923 

Woodhaven 10,120 92,924 

Woodside 25,023 114,819 

 


